

(Translation)

Corporate Governance Policy

B.Grimm Power Public Company Limited

Message from Chairman

B.Grimm Power Public Company Limited is committed to conducting business with the Corporate Governance principles for sustainable growth, supporting transparency to build confidence and trust from shareholders, investors and related stakeholders as well as creating long-term value and outstanding business performance for the Company in a sustainable manner.

The Company has therefore established "Corporate Governance Policy" which is based on the Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand, as a practical guideline for the Company and subsidiaries to follow and promote the culture of good corporate governance for the sustainable business growth.

-signature-(Mr. Pakorn Thavisin) Chairman

Contents

PRINCIPLE 1	Establish Clear Leadership Role and Responsibilities of the Board	. 1
Principle 1.1	Key Role as Organisation Leader	1
Principle 1.2	Corporate Governance for Sustainable Value Creation for Business	1
Principle 1.3	Performing Duties Responsibly, Carefully and Honestly for Best Interest of Company	1
Principle 1.4	Key Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of Board of Directors	2
PRINCIPLE 2	Define Objectives that Promote Sustainable Value Creation	. 4
Principle 2.1	Define Key Objectives and Targets	4
Principle 2.2	Business Strategies and Annual Plans in line with Key Objectives and Targets	4
PRINCIPLE 3	Strengthen board effectiveness	. 6
Principle 3.1	Structure, Composition and Qualifications of Directors	6
Principle 3.2	Roles and Duties of Chairman of the Board of Directors	7
Principle 3.3	Nomination of Directors	9
Principle 3.4	Director Remuneration	9
Principle 3.5	Director's Functions and Sufficient Time Allocation	. 10
Principle 3.6	Subsidiaries and Associated Companies' Governance	. 11
Principle 3.7	Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors	. 11
Principle 3.8	Promoting Skills and Knowledge Development Program for Directors	. 12
Principle 3.9	Board of Directors' Meetings	. 12
PRINCIPLE 4	Ensure effective Top Executives and Human Resources Management	15
Principle 4.1	Nomination of the President and Top Executives Development Programs	. 15
Principle 4.2	Appropriate Compensation Structure and Performance Evaluation	. 15
Principle 4.3	Shareholders' Structure and Relationship	. 16
Principle 4.4	Human Resources Management and Development	. 16
PRINCIPLE 5	Nurture innovation and responsible business	17
Principle 5.1	Creating Innovation for the company and its shareholders together with benefits for customers, other stakeholders, society, and the environment	
Principle 5.2	Operating Business with Social and Environmental Responsibility	17
Principle 5.3	Efficient and Effective Resources Allocation and Management	18
Principle 5.4	Information Technology Management	19

PRINCIPLE 6	Strengthen Effective Risk Management and Internal Control	20
Principle 6.1	Risk Management and Internal Control	20
Principle 6.2	Independence of Audit Committee	20
Principle 6.3	Prevention of Conflicts of Interest and Reporting of Vested Interest	21
Principle 6.4	Anti-corruption	22
Principle 6.5	Handling complaints and whistleblowing	22
PRINCIPLE 7	Ensure disclosure and financial integrity	23
Principle 7.1	Preparation of Financial Reports and Disclosure of Material Information	23
Principle 7.2	Sufficient Financial Liquidity and Debt Repayment Capacity	23
Principle 7.3	Mitigation for Financial Difficulties	24
Principle 7.4	Sustainability Report	24
Principle 7.5	Investor Relations	24
Principle 7.6	Dissemination of Information through Information Technology	25
PRINCIPLE 8	Ensure engagement and communication with shareholders	26
Principle 8.1	Shareholders' Involvement	26
Principle 8.2	Shareholders' Meeting	27
Principle 8.3	Resolution and Minutes of Shareholders' Meeting	28
	EVENTION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST	20

Establish Clear Leadership Role and Responsibilities of the Board

Principle 1.1 Key Role as Organisation Leader

The Board of Directors understands and realises their leadership role and responsibilities in overseeing the company, and strengthen good governance, including: (1) defining objectives and targets; (2) defining strategies, operating policy, as well as allocating significant resources to achieve the objectives and targets, and (3) monitoring, evaluating, and supervising the reporting on the Company's performance.

Principle 1.2 Corporate Governance for Sustainable Value Creation for Business

The Board of Director has the following on corporate governance policy to create sustainable value creation of business which will then enable the company to achieve its business targets:

- (1) conducting business based on competitiveness and performance with long-term sustainable value creation.
- (2) operating the business ethically with respect and responsibilities towards shareholder's right and stakeholders in all sectors, taking into consideration social and environment impact in addition to financial performance.

The Board of Directors recognises the importance of a leadership role in creating and driving corporate culture adheres to ethics. The Board of Directors will therefore aim to act as a role model leader of the organisation and provides the Code of Conduct as a policy and guideline for good corporate governance applicable to all directors, executives, employees and staff of the company. The Board of Directors also provides training, communication and learning for directors, executives, employees and staff to understand the importance of such matter, in order to ensure adequate mechanisms are in place for monitoring, reviewing and reporting compliance with the company's policies and guidelines every 2 years¹.

- (3) operating business with beneficial for good corporate citizenship in pararell with social and environmental development as well as contribution in reducing society and environmental impact.
- (4) conducting business based on corporate resilience.

Principle 1.3 Performing Duties Responsibly, Carefully and Honestly for Best Interest of Company

The Board of Directors has an obligation to supervise all directors and executives to perform their obligations with Accountability and Responsibility, Duty of Care, and Duty of Loyalty for best interest of the Company by:

(1) perform their responsibilities in compliance with applicable laws, objectives, articles of association, Board of Directors' resolutions, and Shareholders' Meeting resolutions.

¹ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

(2) providing an adequate systems and controls to ensure that the company complies with applicable law and standards for specified matters, including, objectives, articles of association, Board of Directors' resolutions, and shareholders' meeting resolutions, and the Company's policies.

Principle 1.4 Key Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors understands their roles, scope of duties, and responsibilities, including to clearly define the delegation of duties and responsibilities to sub-committees and management, as well as to monitor and supervise performance of its duties.

(1) Key roles, duties, and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has key roles in determining business direction, as well as regulating organisation management to ensure that it is applicable with the laws, objectives, and regulations to create the long-term sustainable value creation and best interest of the Company and shareholders in the long term.

Therefore, the Board of Directors has put in place "Board of Directors Charter" with the objective to enable the directors of the company to understand their roles, duties and responsibilities, and of proving that they will be able to perform such duties efficiently, effectively and transparently. Such charter will be reviewed regularly at least once a year.

(2) Sub-committees

The Board of Directors has appointed 4 sub-committees, who are experts in specific areas of work as delegated by the Board of Directors and the roles of such sub-committees are to consider, filter information and give opinion and guideline prior to presentation to the Board of Directors. The sub-committees are as follows:

- (2.1) Audit Committee
- (2.2) Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee²
- (2.3) Nomination and Compensation Committee
- (2.4) Management Committee

The composition, authorities and responsibilities of the sub-committees are set out in each sub-committee's charter which serves as benchmark reference against which each sub-committee is to perform. Such charter will be reviewed regularly at least once a year.

(3) Scope of authorities and Responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management

The Board of Directors recognises the significance of their scope of duties and responsibilities. It has delegated its authorities to the Management and monitored the Management's performance as so delegated.

- (3.1) Key authorities, duties, and responsibilities of the Board of Directors consist of:
 - (a) to consider, approve and/or provide opinion on significant matters relating to the Company's operation such as objectives, main targets, visions and etc;

² Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

- (b) developing culture of compliance and ethical conduct, and lead by example;
- strengthening an effective board structure and practices conducive for achieving the company's objectives;
- (d) ensuring suitable President selection, remuneration, development, and performance evaluation;
- (e) ensuring appropriate compensation architecture that supports achievement of the company's objectives.
- (3.2) The Board of Directors jointly with the Management shall have the duty to consider, establish and supervise the Company's business operations as a whole such that the operations shall be consistent with the objectives and key targets of the business. The Management is tasked at proposing matters to the Board of Directors for decision and thereafter for the Board of Directors' delegation of such matters to the Management for execution. The Management is responsible for business operations and administration as per the strategies, policies and plans approved by the Board of Directors and is responsible for reporting matters to the Board of Directors on a regular basis:
 - (a) formulating and reviewing strategies, objectives, annual plans and budget;
 - (b) ensuring robust system for risk management and internal control;
 - to establish the operational authority appropriate to the Management's responsibilities, such as setting approval the authority of financial transactions (Line of Authority) etc;
 - (d) overseeing appropriate policies and plans for resource allocation and budgeting, including HR, IT;
 - (e) monitoring and evaluate performance as delegated to the Management to ensure it is according to the policies and plans;
 - (f) ensuring integrity of financial and non-financial information disclosures.

In this regard, the Management is accountable for execution which shall comply with the strategies, policies or plans as approved by the Board of Directors. The Management shall be responsible for making decisions on business operations, marketing, sales, procurements, resource management, human resource management and general administration, etc.

Define Objectives that Promote Sustainable Value Creation

Principle 2.1 Define Key Objectives and Targets

The Board of Directors places great emphasis on the setting of key objectives and targets of the business so that the business can grow in parallel with the society in a sustainable manner, create value and benefits for the organisation, customers, partners, employees, shareholders, stakeholders and society as a whole, and build organisational culture within the framework of good corporate governance.

- (1) The Board of Directors ensure that the company has clearly defined objectives that support the company's business model. The board should ensure company-wide communication of the objectives, for instance, in the form of the company's vision and values, or principles and purposes.
- (2) When developing the business model for sustainable value creation for business, stakeholders and public, the board should take into consideration the following factors:
 - the company's ecosystem, including changes to business conditions and opportunities, and the company's effective use of innovation and technology;
 - (b) customers and other stakeholders; and
 - (c) available resources and competitiveness of the company.
- (3) The Company's values will reflect characteristics of good corporate governance, such as accountability, integrity, transparency, and due consideration of social and environmental responsibilities.
- (4) The Board of Directors promote a good corporate governance culture and strive to have the company's objectives embedded in company-wide decision-making and conduct through effective communication and leading by example.

Principle 2.2 Business Strategies and Annual Plans in line with Key Objectives and Targets

The business objectives, goals and strategies, both annual and medium term, shall be aligned with the key business's objectives, goals, strategies and plans are consistent with the long-term objectives, while utilising innovation and technology effectively.

- (1) The Board of Directors will ensure that the company's annual and medium-term (3 5 years) objectives, goals, strategies, and plans correlate and align with the company's long-term objectives, while considering the business environment, opportunities, and the company's risk appetite. The Board of Directors will ensure that the company's medium-term objectives, goals, strategies, and plans are annually reviewed and updated as appropriate.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the company's strategies and plans take into account all relevant factors influencing the value chain, including the company's ecosystem, risks, resources, competitiveness, and stakeholders.

- (3) When developing strategies and plans, the Board of Directors shall supervise and that innovation and the use of technology to enhance competitiveness, respond to stakeholder concerns and expectations, and meet social and environmental responsibilities.
- (4) The Company's targets shall be suitable to the company's business profile and competency. The Board of Directors will ensure that both financial and non-financial targets to be achieved throught the conducting business with integrity, honesty and transparency.
- (5) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure effective communication of the company's objectives and goals throught the company's vision, mission and corporate values as well as strategies, plans, and targets throughout the company.
- (6) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure proper resource allocation and effective systems and controls, including monitor and follow up to ensure the compliance and the implementation of the company's annual strategies and plans³.

³ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

Strengthen board effectiveness

Principle 3.1 Structure, Composition and Qualifications of Directors

The Board of Directors has the duties and responsibilities for determining and reviewing the board structure, in terms of composition, qualifications, expertise, experience and appropriate number of directors for the business, the proportion of independent directors in order to ensure its leadership role in achieving the company's objectives and key targets. Details relevant to these are described in the Board of Directors' Charter.

(1) The structure of the board should consist of directors with various qualifications who plays an important role in corporate governance for the best interests of the company by setting the group's policies together with the Management to lay down both short term and long term operational plans, as well as setting the financial policy, risk management and overview of the organisation, play an important role in regulating, monitoring and evaluating the Company's performance and top executives' performance to ensure that they are in line with the laid-out plan.

The Board of Directors should have directors and independent directors and the number of independent directors should meet the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the Board of Directors' member are consisted of qualified directors in terms of skills, experience, competency and specific attributes, as well as gender and age necessary to accomplish the organisation's key objectives and targets. This is to ensure that the Board of Directors as a whole has appropriate qualifications and comprises at least 1 non-executive director who have experience in key business or industry that the Company is currently conducing.

- (2) The Board of Directors shall fix the number of directors appropriate for the sise, type, and complexity of the business so that they can perform their duties efficiently. The Board of Directors must comprise at least 5 directors and should not be more than 12 directors and at least half of the total number of directors must have domicile in Thailand.
- (3) The proportion between executive directors and non-executive directors should support proper checks and balances to prevent unfettered power of decision and authority by any one individual. The majority of the directors shall non-executive directors who are allowed to comment on the Mnagement's operation independently, while the number and qualifications of independent directors shall be as required in the relevant rules of the Securities and Exchange Commision and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mechanism shall be put in place such that independent directors can efficiently work with all the remaining directors in the Board of Directors and are free to give opinion independently.
- (4) The Board of Directors shall explicitly disclose in the company's annual report and/or the annual registration statement/ annual report ("Form 56-1 One Report") and on the website its diversity policies and details relating to directors, including directors' age, gender, qualifications, experience, shareholding percentage, years of service as director, and director position in other listed companies⁴.

⁴ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

Principle 3.2 Roles and Duties of Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall select an appropriate person as the chairman and ensure that the board composition serves the best interest of the company, enabling the board to make its decisions as a result of exercising independent judgement on corporate affairs.

- (1) The Chairman of the Board od Directors and President shall have different duties and responsibilities. The Board of Directors has already defined the roles and responsibilities of both positions clearly in order to ensure effective checks and balances of power, the two positions will be held by different individuals.
- (2) Division of Duties and Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the President
 - (2.1) Roles and Duties of the Chairman of the Board of Directors
 - (a) to be lead of the Board of Directors in supervising, monitoring and ensuring that the Board of Directors' effective performance of duties and the achievement of the Company's main objectives and goals.
 - (b) to support all directors to participate in promoting an ethical corporate culture and good corporate governance.
 - (c) to set the Board of Directors' meeting agendas by consulting with the President and establish measures for including significant matters in the agenda.
 - (d) to allocate sufficient time for management to propose topics and for directors to discuss significant agendas thoroughly and to encourage each directors to exercise independent opinion in the best interest of the company.
 - (e) to promote good relationships between executive and non-executive directors, and between the board and management.

(2.2) Roles and Duties of the President

- (a) Lead the management team.
- (b) Consider and develop policies, strategies, missions, financial goals, business plans and annual budget to be proposed to the Board of Directors for approval.
- (c) Manage, supervise and perform routine tasks and/or day-to-day tasks for the Company's interests and in accordance with the main objectives and goals, vision, mission, strategies, business plans and budget as delegated and/or approved by the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders' meetings.
- (d) Monitor, inspect, control and develop the operations of the Company, subsidiaries and/or associated companies to ensure good operating results according to the goals and improve better operating results.
- (e) Issue orders, rules and notifications regarding business operations in alignment with the Company's policies and for effective management.

- (f) Establish rules, procedures and work methods as deemed appropriate, supervise personnel in different departments to work in line with each department's strategic plan and goals in an efficient and effective manner as well as ensure continuous personnel development.
- (g) Consider and approve the Company's normal business transactions, including opertions tht are supportive of the Company's normal business having general trade and business conditions, all of which shall be subject to regulations of the the Securities and Exchange Commision as well as the Stock Exchange of Thailand relating to connected transctions and asset acquisition and deposition transactions.
- (h) Sub-authorise and/or delegte any other persons or group of persons to perform certain specified tasks on behalf of President, in this regard such sub-authorisation and/or delegation must be under the scope of authority specified in the power of attorney, rules, procedures, or resolutions of the Board of Directors' meetings. However, the above delegation cannot be made if it would allow the President or any authorised attorney who has conflict of interest or a personal conflict with the Company to approve such transaction. In this case, President shall have no authority to approve such transaction and must propose such transaction to the Board of Directors' and/or shareholders' meetings (as the case may be) for consideration and approval, except for case that such transaction is an ordinary transaction and of arm's length nature in compliance with the principles already approved by the Board of Directors.
- (i) Perform any other operations as assigned and authorised by the Board of Directors
- (3) In the case where the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the President are not distinctly segregated, the Board of Directors shall promote the check and balance of power and authority between the Board of Directors and the Management by having the Board of Directors comprise a majority of independent directors and/or appointing a designated independent director to be a Lead Independent Director to participate in setting the board meeting agenda⁵.
- (4) The Board of Directors has the policy that the tenure of independent directors serving in the Board of Directors should not exceed 9 consecutive years from the date of the first appointment. However, the Board of Directors may propose re-appointment for such independent director if the Board od Directors is of the view that such independent director has qualification, competency, experiences and necessary attributes which shall be useful to the Company's business operation.
- (5) The Board of Directors has already appointed relevant committees to review specific matters, to screen information, and to recommend action for board approval; however, the board remains accountable for all decisions and actions. The member composition, authorities and responsibilities of these subcommittees are outlined in each sub-committees charter.

8

⁵ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 1/2021 dated 20 January 2021 with effective from 20 January 2021.

(6) The Board of Directors shall disclose the roles and responsibilities of the board and the committees, the number of meetings and the number of directors participating in meetings in the previous year, board and committee performance as require by laws and relevant notification.

Principle 3.3 Nomination of Directors

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the policy and procedures for the selection and nomination of directors are clear and transparent resulting in the desired composition of the board.

- (1) The Board of Directors has already established a Nomination and Compensation Committee, with a view to perform the duty of considering and requirements regarding the nomination for the Board of Directors. The chairman may be an independent director.
- (2) Nomination and Compensation Committee shall be set the nomination criteria and process consistent with the skills matrix approved by the board and ensure that the candidate's profile meets the requirements set out in the skills matrix and nomination criteria. Upon proposal to and approval by the board of a candidate, the candidate is presented to the shareholders' meeting for election and appointment as a director. Shareholders will receive adequate prior notice and sufficient information about candidates up for election at the shareholders' meeting.
- (3) Nomination and Compensation Committee shall be present a description of the nomination criteria and process, and role and responsibilities of a particular appointment to the board before nominating new directors. If Nomination and Compensation Committee nominates current directors, their performance shall be considered.
- (4) In case of the Board of Directors appoints any person as a consultant to Nomination and Compensation Committee, relevant information about that consultant will be disclosed in the annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report, including information about independence and conflicts of interest⁶.

Principle 3.4 Director Remuneration

The shareholders' meeting has authority to approve remuneration of directors. Therefore, in proposing the remuneration of directors to shareholders' meetings, the Board of Directors shall consider the remuneration structure and rate that are suitable for the responsibilities and serve an incentive for the Board of Directors to lead the organisation to reach short-term and long-term goals.

- (1) The Board of Directors has already established a Nomination and Compensation Committee and the chairman may be an independent director. The Nomination and Compensation Committee is responsible for setting the remuneration policy.
- (2) The remuneration of the Board of Directors shall be consistent with the company's strategies and long-term objectives, and reflect the experience, obligations, scope of work, accountability and responsibilities, and contribution of each director. Directors who have additional roles and responsibilities, such as a member of a committee, should be entitled to additional remuneration, comparable to industry practice and each similar organisation size.

⁶ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

- (3) The shareholders have authority to approve the board remuneration structure, including level and pay components (both cash-based and non-cash compensation). The Board of Directors is responsible to consider the appropriateness of each pay component, both in terms of fixed rates (such as retainer fee and attendance fee) and remuneration paid according to the company's performance (such as bonus and rewards). The remuneration should reflect the values that the company creates for shareholders taking a long-term perspective on company performance, and the pay level should not be too high so as to avoid the board excessively focusing on the company's short-term results.
- (4) The Board of Directors shall be disclosed the directors' remuneration policy that reflects the duties and responsibilities of each individual, including the pay components and level received by each director. The remuneration disclosed for each director should also include remuneration for what each individual receives from holding directorship at the company's subsidiaries. (if any)
- (5) In case of the Board of Directors appoints any person to consult with the Nomination and Compensation Committee, that consultant's information will be disclosed in the annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report, including information regarding independence and any conflicts of interest⁷.

Principle 3.5 Director's Functions and Sufficient Time Allocation

The Board of Directors shall ensure that all directors are properly accountable for their duties, responsibilities and (in-) actions, and allocate sufficient time to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively.

- (1) The Board of Directors shall be responsible to ensure that there has a mechanism to assist directors in understanding their own roles and responsibilities. The Company shall provide an orientation session for new directors to introduce business overview, operational guideline, as well as other useful information for new director's performance of their duties.
- (2) The Board of Directotrs has set a policy and publicly disclose criteria limiting the number of director positions in which can hold simultaneously in other companies, should not exceed 4⁸ listed companies to ensure that those directors will be able to dedicate their time to perform their duties in the Company adequately, and shall provide a system for reporting and disclosing other positions of directors.
- The Board of Diriectors will ensure that the company's policies prohibit and prevent a director from creating a conflict of interest with the company, including by using the company's assets, information or opportunities for his or her own benefit, as a result of having or taking a director or management position, or having or creating vested interests, both directly and indirectly, in other companies. Information about a director's other directorships and positions should be reported to shareholders, as appropriate. i.e. the Company's directors and executives have the duty to report their interest and related persons according to the rules and processes for interest reporting as required by the Board of Directors to prevent any potential conflict of interest. In addition, such directors or executives are prohibited from considering and approving the Company's potential transactions in which they have interest.

⁷ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 15/2023 dated 13 December 2023 with effective from 14 December 2023.

(4) The Board of Directors has a policy to support each director to attend not less than 75 percent of all Board of Director meetings.

Principle 3.6 Subsidiaries and Associated Companies' Governance

The Board of Directors will ensure that the company's governance framework and policies extend to and are accepted by subsidiaries and associate companies as well as to ensure that subsidiaries and associate companies have a same understanding, and shall be ensure that the Company's governance framework and policies extend to subsidiaries and associate companies, including written policies relating to:

- (1) The authority to appoint subsidiary directors, executives, or others with controlling power
- (2) The duties and responsibilities of subsidiary directors, executives and others with controlling power according to (1) and they are assigned to oversee the subsidiaries' operations to ensure compliance with applicable law and standards, and the subsidiaries' policies. If the company's subsidiary has investors other than the company, the Board of Directors will require the company's appointed representative to perform his/her role in the subsidiary's best interest and consistent with the governance framework and policies of the company.
- (3) The subsidiary's internal control systems are effective and that all transactions comply with relevant law and standards.
- (4) The integrity and timely disclosure of the material information of the subsidiary, including its financial information, related party transactions, acquisition and disposition of assets and other important transactions, capital increases or decreases, and termination of a subsidiary.

In case of the businesses that the company has or plans to hold a significant investment in such as between 20 percent and 50 percent of shares with voting rights, other than subsidiaries, the Board of Directors will ensure that shareholder agreements or other agreements are in place to enable the company's performance monitoring and participation in the businesses' management, including for approval of significant transactions and decisions. This is to ensure that the company has sufficient, accurate, and timely information for the preparation of its financial statements that conform with relevant standards.

Principle 3.7 Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has already conducted a formal annual performance evaluation of the board, subcommittees, and each individual director. The evaluation results should be used to strengthen the effectiveness of the board.

- (1) The Board of Directors', sub-committee's and individual directors' performance evaluation shall be conducted at least once a year to facilitate consideration and improvement of the board's performance and effectiveness and resolution of any problems. Assessment criteria and process for the Board of Directors', sub-committees' and directors' performance shall be systematically set in advance.
- (2) The annual assessment of the performance of the Board of Directors and sub-committees as a whole and on an individual director level shall be based on self-evaluation, or alternatively, on cross-evaluation

together with self-evaluation. The criteria, process, and results of the evaluation shall be disclosed in the annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report⁹.

- (3) The company may appoint an external consultant to assist in setting guidelines and providing recommendations for a board assessment at least once every three years. This information shall be disclosed in the annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report¹⁰.
- (4) The evaluation results shall be used for ensuring that the directors collectively possess and support of considering appropriate member composition of the Board od Directors and each sub-committee.

Principle 3.8 Promoting Skills and Knowledge Development Program for Directors

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the board and each individual director has knowledge and understanding in their roles and duties, business operation manner and laws relating to business operation, as well as support every director to constantly develop skills and knowledge required for their performance of duties.

- (1) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that newly appointed directors receive a formal and proper induction and all information relevant to their responsibilities and performing their duties, including details about the company's objectives, targets, vision, missions and core values including the nature of the business, and the company's operations.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that directors regularly receive sufficient and continuous training and knowledge development through the implementation of a policy to promote and support directors and top executives of the Company to participate in seminars and attend various useful training courses, as applicable the scope of responsibilities and duties assigned to such director and top executive.
- (3) The Board of Directors shall support and promote all directors to have understanding of relevant law, rule, and other applicable obligations, risk factors, and the company's business environment. The Board of Directors shall receive accurate, timely and clear information, including timely and regular updates.
- (4) The Board of Directors shall disclose the record of the training and knowledge development of the Board of Directors in the annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report¹¹.

Principle 3.9 Board of Directors' Meetings

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the Board of Directors shall be perform its duties effectively and have access to necessary information and have the company secretary who has appropriate knowledge and experience to support the Board of Directors' operation.

(1) Meeting schedule and Number of Meeting

The Board of Directors shall consider the number of board meetings appropriately to the obligations and responsibilities of the board and the manner in business operation, and the board should meet at least once in every quarter and there should be at least 6 times per fiscal year. The board's meeting schedule

⁹ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

¹⁰ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

¹¹ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

and agenda will be set in advance and each director should receive sufficient notice to ensure attendance.

(2) Meeting agenda, Meeting invitation and Meeting documents

The Board of Directors shall arrange meetings according to the laws, articles of association and relevant rules and meeting agendas shall be clear outlined for each meeting. There may be special agendas as necessary. Each director as well as the Management shall be given an opportunity to propose any matter that is useful to the Company to be included in the agendas. The Chairman of the Board of Directors or Company Secretary as assigned by the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall send meeting invitations and meeting documents (either in hard copies and/or in electronic form) to every director prior to the meeting date as required by the articles of association pursuant to the laws, so as to allow the Board of Directors to receive the documents and have time to study the documents prior to the meeting date.

- (3) Meeting, Presentation and Minutes of Meeting
 - (3.1) During the meeting, the Board of Directors may invite the Management, key executives or persons relating to a particular agenda to attend the meetings to answer questions and provide additional information in their capacity as the person being related to matter in question, and to allow Board of Director to have the opportunity to know management and top executives for sake a succession plan.
 - (3.2) The Board of Directors may access additional information necessary from the President, Company Secretary, or other top executives assigned within the required scope of policues. If necessary, the Board of Director may arrange for independent opinion from advisors or external professionals at the company's expense.
 - (3.3) Upon each meeting, the Board of Directors assigns the Company Secretary to prepare minutes of meeting in writing to be presented to the Board of Directors for consideration.

(4) Non-executive directors meeting

The Board of Directors has a policy to hold non-executive directors meeting at least once in a year to give an opportunity for those directors to have a meeting amongst themselves as necessary to discuss various management-related issues of interest without the attendance of any Management team member. The outcome of such meeting shall also be reported to the President.

(5) Company Secretary

(5.1) The Board of Directors has appoint a Company Secretary with the necessary qualifications, knowledge, skills, and experience suitable to perform the function of providing recommendation relating to laws and rules that the Board of Directors must be aware of, supervising the preparation of documents for the Board of Director's Meetings, the preparation of important documents and the arrangement of the Board of Directors' activities, as well as coordination to ensure that the Board of Directors Meeting's resolution is followed. In this regard, the Board of

Directors shall disclose qualifications and experiences of the Company Secretary in annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report and on the Company's website 12.

(5.2) The Company Secretary must perform his/her duties with responsibility, due care and integrity as well as comply with laws, objectives, articles of association and the resolutions of Board of Directors and shareholders' meetings.

In compliance with applicable laws, the Company Secretary shall have the following duties and responsibilities:

- (a) to prepare and maintain the Company's documents as follows:
 - director registration;
 - invitation letters for, and minutes of, Board of Directors' Meetings;
 - invitation letters for, and minutes of, Shareholders' Meetings;
 - Annual Report
- (b) to maintain directors' and executives' interest reports and to prepare a copy of each interest report as per Section 89/14 of the Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 2535 (1992) (as amended) as prepared by the Company's directors and executives for the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of Audit Committee for examination and acknowledgement within 7 business days upon the receipt of such reports by the Company;
- (c) to carry out all activities regarding the meetings of the Board of Directors and shareholders;
- (d) to give recommendation on rules and regulations that the Board of Directors and executives should be aware of;
- (e) to perform any other actions as required by the Capital Market Supervisory Board and/or as assigned by the Board of Directors.
- (5.3) The Board of Directors shall support and promote the Company Secretary to receive ongoing training and education relevant to performing his/her duties. The Company Secretary must enrol on a Company Secretary certified programme sucha as IOD or Thai Listed Companies Association, etc.
- (5.4) In case that the Company Secretary retires or may not perform his/her duties, the Board of Directors shall appoint a new Company Secretary within 90 days upon the date on which the former Company Secretary retires or could no longer perform their duties. In this regard, the Board of Directors may assign one of the directors to perform the duties as an acting Company Secretary during such interim period.

¹² Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

Ensure effective Top Executives and Human Resources Management

Principle 4.1 Nomination of the President and Top Executives Development Programs

The Board of Directors shall ensure that a proper mechanism is in place for the nomination and development of the President and key executives to ensure that they possess the knowledge, skills, experience, and characteristics necessary for the company to achieve its objectives.

- (1) The Board of Directors has assigned Nomination and Compensation Committee to establish, the criteria and procedures for nomination and appointment of the President.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall monitor and supervise the President to establish the criteria and procedures for nomination and appointment of key executives as deemed appropriately.
- (3) To ensure business continuity, the Board of Directors has already assigned Nomination and Compensation Committee to consider and provide the succession plans for the President and report on the implementation of the development and succession plans to the Board of Directors for further acknowledgement.
- (4) The Board of Directors shall encourage and promote continuous development and education of the President and key executives that is relevant to their roles.
- (5) The President and key executives may serve or wish to serve as a director in other companies. However, such outside directorship must not be an obstacle to their performance of duties and they are prohibited from engaging in, or participating in, businesses of the same nature and in competitive with those of the Company and subsidiaries, nor becoming a partner or director in other juristic entities of the same nature and in competitive with those businesses of the Company and subsidiaries, whether for their own interest or for the interest of others.

Principle 4.2 Appropriate Compensation Structure and Performance Evaluation

The Board of Directors should ensure that an appropriate compensation structure and performance evaluation are in place.

- (1) The Board of Directors has the policy on the compensation structure rewards individual performance, incentivises the President, key executives, employees and staff at all levels to act in support of the company's objectives and values, and fosters long-term commitment by aligning incentives with future company performance through:
 - (1.1) appropriate combination of salary and other short-term compensation (such as bonus), and long-term compensation (such as employee stock ownership plan participation)
 - (1.2) ensure that the individual total compensation takes into account industry standards and company performance, and
 - (1.3) predetermined and communicated performance evaluation criteria.

- The Board of Directors has authorised Nomination and Compensation Committee to consider and establish rules relating to remuneration and performance evaluation criteria for the President and propose to the Board of Directors for further approval. The performance evaluation criteria should incentivise the President to perform his/her duties in support of the company's objectives, strategies, and long-term sustainable value creation and shall be communicated to the President in advance on an annual basis. With this regard, the Chairman of the Board of Directors will be responsible for communicating the results (including development areas) of the performance evaluation to the President.
- (3) The Board of Directors has authorised Nomination and Compensation Committee to consider the performance evaluation criteria and approve overall compensation structure of key executives prepared by President and proposed to Nomination and Compensation Committee ¹³.
- (4) The Board of Directors shall supervise Nomination and Compensation Committee to ensure that performance evaluation criteria for the whole organisation, which will be prepared by President and proposed to Nomination and Compensation Committee, are in place¹⁴.

Principle 4.3 Shareholders' Structure and Relationship

The Board of Directors has a policy to understand shareholders' structure and relationship that may affect their business management and their authority to control business operation. This understanding will help avoid any obstacle to the Board of Directors' performance of duties. The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that all information which may affect the business management shall be properly disclosed.

Principle 4.4 Human Resources Management and Development

The Board of Directors shall supervise and monitor the company has effective human resources management and development programmes to ensure that the company has adequate staffing and appropriately knowledgeable, skilled, and experienced and is well motivated.

- (1) The Board of Directors shall supervise the company on setting up the human resources management properly and aligning with the company's objectives and furthers sustainable value creation. All employees and staff must receive fair treatment.
- (2) The Board of Directors will supervise the company to establish a provident fund or other retirement plan, and require management to implement a training and development programme for employees and staff that promotes financial literacy, including on retirement savings, and educates employees and staff that are suitable for their age and risk appetite.

¹³ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 1/2021 dated 20 January 2021 with effective from 20 January 2021.

¹⁴ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 1/2021 dated 20 January 2021 with effective from 20 January 2021.

Nurture innovation and responsible business

<u>Principle 5.1</u> Creating Innovation for the company and its shareholders together with benefits for its customers, other stakeholders, society, and the environment

The Board of Directors has placed a priority to promote innovation that creates value for the company and its shareholders together with benefits for its customers, other stakeholders, society, and the environment, in support of sustainable growth of the company.

- (1) The Board of Directors has placed a priority to promote a corporate culture that embraces innovation and ensure management's inclusion of innovation in corporate strategy, operational development planning, and operation monitoring.
- (2) The Board of Directors promotes on nurturing innovation that enhances long-term value creation for the business in a changing environment. Such innovation may include designing innovative business models, products and services, promoting research, improving production and operation processes, and collaborating with partners to create mutual benefits for customers' business, partners' business, society and the environment, and discourages inappropriate, illegal or unethical behaviors.

Principle 5.2 Operating Business with Social and Environmental Responsibility

The Board of Directors shall supervise and encourage management to adopt responsible operations, and incorporate them into the company's operational plan. This is to ensure that every department and function in the company adopts the company's objectives, goals, and strategies, applying high ethical, environmental and social standards, and contributes to the sustainable growth of the company.

In a view of the Roles of Stakeholders, the Board of Directors has encouraged the management to ensure that the company's operations reflect the company-wide implementation of high ethical, environmental and social standards, including respect for human rights and ensure that appropriate company-wide policies and procedures are implemented to further the company's objectives, goals and strategies in support of sustainable value creation.

(1) Responsibilities to employees, staff, and workers

Adhering to applicable law and standards and providing fair treatment and respect for human rights, including a fair level of remuneration and other benefits, a level of welfare that is not less than the legal limit (but can be over the legal limit where appropriate), health care, non-discrimination and safety in the workplace, access to relevant training, potential skills development and advancement.

(2) Responsibilities to customers

Adhering to applicable law and standards, considering impact on health, safety of products and services, customer information security, sales conduct, after-sales service throughout the lifespan of products and services, and following up on customer satisfaction measurements to improve the quality of products and services. In addition, advertising and public relations should promote responsible consumption and must be done responsibly, avoiding taking advantage of or misleading customers, or causing misunderstanding about the products and services offered by the company.

(3) Responsibilities to business partners

Engaging in and expecting fair procurement and contracting, including fair contract or agreement conditions, providing access to training, developing potential and enhancing production and service standards in line with applicable law and standards, and expecting and supervising business partners to respect human rights, social and environmental responsibilities, and treat their employees, staff, and workers fairly including ensuring that business partners have implemented sustainable and values-based business policies and procedures.

(4) Responsibilities towards creditors

Ensure strict compliance with the contracts or terms and conditions as agreed as well as possible obligations and liabilities. In case of non-compliance with any of the terms and conditions or defaut, the creditors shall be informed without concealment of facts to jointly consider solutions based on reasonableness. In this regard, the Company shall operate business efficiently and effectively to achieve sustainable growth and financial stability and enhance creditors' confidence.

(5) Responsibilities towards the community and society

Applying business knowledge and experience to develop and follow up on the success of projects that can concretely add value to the community while respecting community interests.

(6) Responsibilities towards the environment

Preventing, reducing andmanaging negative impact on the environment from all aspects of the company's operations, including in the context of raw material use, energy use, water use, renewable resources use, rehabilitating the diversity of biology, waste management, and greenhouse gas emissions.

(7) Government agencies and regulatory agencies

Adhering to the laws, rules, regulations and orders of relevant government agencies and regulatory agencies.

(8) Fair competition

Promoting ethical business conduct and not using anti-competitive practices to gain or protect a market position.

(9) Anti-fraud and corruption

Adhering to the applicable anti-fraud and corruption law and standards, and implements, announces and reports on anti-fraud and corruption policies and practices to the public, including on its participation in private sector anti-corruption initiatives and certification programmes. The Board of Directors will also encourage the company to collaborate with other companies and business partners to realise the importance and support anti-fraud and corruption implementation.

Principle 5.3 Efficient and Effective Resources Allocation and Management

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that management allocates and manages resources efficiently and effectively throughout all aspects of the value chain to enable the company to meet its objectives.

- (1) The Board of Directors realises the necessity of resources optimisation such as financial capital, manufactured capital, intellectual capital, human capital, social and relationship capital, and natural capital. The Board also realises that the consumption of such resources has an impact on one another, and different business model also causes different impact. Therefore, when deciding on a business model, the Board of Directors will consider the impact and worthiness of the resources consumption should be conducted based on ethical, responsible, and overall sustainable value creation.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that management continuously reviews, adapts, and develops the company's use and optimisation of resources, considering internal and external factors to meet the company's objectives.

Principle 5.4 Information Technology Management

The Board of Directors shall establish a framework for governance of enterprise IT that is aligned with the company's business needs and priorities, stimulates business opportunities and performance, strengthens risk management, and supports the company's objectives.

- (1) The Board of Directors has delegated the Management to prepare a policy on allocation and management of information technology resources with an intention to allocate sufficient resources for business operation and to establish guidelines to support the situation where sufficient resources cannot be allocated. This is to ensure that
 - The Company has complied with relevant law, regulations and standards relating to governance of enterprise IT.
 - The Company has established an information security system to preserve the confidentiality.
 - The integrity of relevant data and ensure availability of data shall be observed and maintained in order to safeguard against unauthorised access to information.
 - The Company has considered the IT risks and risk mitigation policies, plans, and measures.
 For example, business continuity management, IT security, incident management, and IT asset management.
 - The Company has considered the proper allocation and management of IT resources, including criteria to identify IT priorities, that takes into consideration the company's business model.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the company's risk management covers IT risk management.
- (3) The Board of Directors shall establish the IT security policies and procedures.

Strengthen Effective Risk Management and Internal Control

Principle 6.1 Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the company has effective and appropriate risk management and internal control systems that are aligned with the company's objectives, goals and strategies and comply with applicable law and standards.

- (1) The Board of Directors understands the nature and scope of the company's principal and substantial risks and should approve the risk appetite of the company.
- (2) The Board of Directors has already established and approved the implementation of risk management policies that are consistent with the company's goals, objectives, strategies and risk appetite. As a result, the Board of Directors has put an emphasis on supporting identification and prioritisation of early warning signals of material risks as well as to supervise and review the risk management policies regularly in an annual basis.
- (3) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the company's principal and substantial risks are identified through consideration of internal and external factors such as strategic risk, operational risk, financial risk, compliance risk, and etc.
- (4) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the impact and likelihood of identified risks are assessed and prioritised, and that appropriate risk mitigation strategies and plans should cover accepting risks (take), reducing or controlling risks (treat), avoiding risks (terminate) and allocating risks (transfer) as well as regularly monitor and assess the effectiveness of the company's risk management.
- (5) The Board of Directors has delegated the above major duties to Management Committee to establish the policies relating to risk management that is appropriate for the business and shall then be screened by Audit Committee prior to proposing it to the Board of Directors for consideration.
- (6) The Board of Directors is responsible to supervise and ensure that the company complies with relevant and applicable law and standards, whether domestic, international or foreign.
- (7) The Board of Directors shall arrange for the assessment of internal control and risk management systems to be adopted by subsidiaries and associated companies and this assessment arrangement shall also be incorporated as part of the assessment of internal control and risk management systems of the Company.

Principle 6.2 Independence of Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has appointed Audit Committee to perform its duties and responsibilities effectively and independently.

(1) Audit Committee comprises at least three directors who must be independent directors, with required qualifications, and comply with applicable legal requirements and shall be in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission and Stock Exchange of Thailand.

- (2) The duties and responsibilities of Audit Committee have been defined in writing in "Audit Committee Charter", which includes the following:
 - Review the company's financial reports for accuracy and completeness.
 - Review the company's internal control and internal audit systems to ensure that they are suitable and effective.
 - Review the company's operations to ensure compliance with all relevant and applicable law and standards.
 - Review internal auditor's independence and approve the appointment and termination of the head of the internal audit function. Outsourcing of the internal audit function has to be reviewed for independence and approved by Audit Committee.
 - Review, select, and recommend to the board for nomination and shareholder approval an
 independent party to be the company's external auditor, consider and recommend the
 auditor's remuneration, and hold a meeting with the external auditor without the presence of
 management at least once a year.
 - Review related party transactions and other transactions that may create conflicts of interest, to ensure that they comply with applicable law, are reasonable, and carried out in the best interest of the company.
 - Review the relevant supporting documents and the self-evaluation form of the company's compliance with private sector's anti-corruption and certification programmes.
- (3) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that procedures are established and allowed Audit Committee to fulfil its duties and responsibilities, including by having access to management, employees and staff, professional advisers (such as external auditor), and information relevant and necessary to perform their duties.
- (4) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure the designation of an internal auditor or establish an independent internal audit function that is responsible for reviewing and improving the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems, and reporting review results to Audit Committee. The result of the internal audit review must be disclosed in the company's annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report¹⁵.
- (5) Audit Committee should express its opinion on the adequacy of the company's internal control and risk management systems, and disclose its opinion in the company's annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report¹⁶.

Principle 6.3 Prevention of Conflicts of Interest and Reporting of Vested Interest

The Board of Directors shall supervise and manage the conflicts of interest that might occur between the company, management, directors, and shareholders. The Board should also prevent the inappropriate use of corporate assets, information, and opportunities, including preventing inappropriate transactions with related parties.

¹⁵ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

¹⁶ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

- (1) The Board of Directors shall supervise and establish an information security system, including appropriate policies and procedures, to protect confidentiality, integrity, and availability of business information, including market-sensitive information. The board should monitor the implementation of the information security policies and procedures and the adherence to confidentiality requirements by insiders, including directors, executives, employees and staff, and professional advisers, such as legal or financial advisers.
- (2) The Board of Directors has established the conflict of interest policy in order to prevent directors, executives, employees and related persons from seeking their own benefits that contradict with the company's interest. This can be accomplished by avoiding actions that could lead to conflict of interest and by requiring those persons connected or related to the transaction in question to inform the Company of their relationship or connection with such transaction, to refrain from involving in the decision-making.
- (3) The Board of Directors should ensure management and monitoring of conflict of interest situations and transactions. The Board of Directors should adopt an ethics and conflicts of interest policy consistent with applicable law and standards (including fiduciary duties), and establish clear guidelines and procedures for disclosure and decision-making in conflict of interest situations and for the best interstest of B.Grimm Power and shareholders. Any party who has a vested interest in a particular transaction, should disclose that interest, and not be involved in the decision-making.¹⁷
- (4) The Board of Directors has set requirements for all directors to report conflicts of interest in relation to any meeting agenda item at least before consideration of the matter at the meeting and record the reported conflict of interest in the meeting minutes. The Board will also ensure that all directors that have a conflict of interest in relation to an agenda item abstain from being present for discussion of or voting on that agenda item.

Principle 6.4 Anti-corruption

The Board of Directors shall establish a clear anti-corruption policy and practices as well as communicate and cascade its policy and practices to employees at all level and external perties in striving its anti-corruption efforts to be implemented and practiced.

The Board shall supervise and ensure company-wide awareness and implementation of the company's anticorruption policy and practices, and compliance with applicable law and standards

Principle 6.5 Handling complaints and whistleblowing

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure a mechanism for handling complaints and whistleblowing through the practical guideline in which explicitly outlined on "Whistle Blowing Policy". Its mechanism covers the details as following:

- Scope of whistleblowing and complaints
- Guideline on whistleblowing and complaints, including the investigation and punishment
- Protection of the whistleblowers or informants including data record and confidentiality
- The complaints and whistleblowing which must be made available for more than one channel at the least.

In this regard, the complaints and whistleblowing channels shall be disclosed on the company's website or in annual report and/or Form 56-1 One Report¹⁸.

¹⁷ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 16/2022 dated 14 December 2022 with effective from 1 January 2023.

¹⁸ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

Ensure disclosure and financial integrity

Principle 7.1 Preparation of Financial Reports and Disclosure of Material Information

The Board of Directors is responsible to ensure the integrity of the company's financial reporting system and that timely and accurate disclosure of all material information regarding the company is made consistent with applicable requirements.

- (1) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that personnel involved in the preparation and disclosure of any information of the company has relevant knowledge, skills and experience, and that sufficient resources, including Chief Financial Officer, Accountant, Internal Auditor, Company Secretary, Investor Relations officer.
- The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure the disclosure of information to shareholders and stakeholders as necessary and appropriate regularly, such information shall be factual, accurate, complete, adequate and comply with laws, taking into account related factors and adhering to the materiality concept. In considering materiality of the matter, which must be disclosed in the case where the disclosure is not explicitly required by law, including financial and non-financial information; such disclosure shall be made through several channels that are generally and equally accessible and be updated regularly. In the case of financial reports, the following factors shall be taken into consideration:
 - The evaluation results of the adequacy of the internal control system.
 - The external auditor's opinions on financial reporting, observations on the internal control system, and any other observations through other channels, (If any).
 - The Audit Committee's opinions.
 - Consistency with company's objectives, strategies and policies.
- (3) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that information disclosures (including financial statements, annual reports, and Form 56-1) reflect the company's financial status and performance accurately and fairly. The Board shall promote the inclusion of the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) in quarterly financial reports in order to provide to investors more complete and accurate information about the company's true financial status, performance and circumstances.¹⁹
- (4) In case of disclosures related to any matter that is specifically concern with any director, the director shall ensure the accuracy and completeness of the information disclosed by the company, including of shareholders' information.

Principle 7.2 Sufficient Financial Liquidity and Debt Repayment Capacity

The board shall supervise and monitor the company's financial liquidity and debt repayment capacity.

(1) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that Management regularly monitors, evaluates and reports on the company's financial status. The Board of Director and Management shall work together

¹⁹ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

to find the solutions at earliest if there is a sign of difficulties in financial liquidity and debt repayment capacity.

(2) To approve any transactions or propose any transactions for shareholder approval, the Board of Directors shall ensure that such transactions or proposal will not affect business continuity, financial liquidity, and debt repayment capacity.

Principle 7.3 Mitigation for Financial Difficulties

The Board of Directors shall ensure that risks to the financial position of the company or financial difficulties are promptly identified, managed and mitigated, and that the company's governance framework provides for the consideration of stakeholder rights.

- (1) In case of financial risk or difficulties, the Board of Directors will closely supervise and enhance monitoring of the affairs of the company, and duly consider the company's financial position and disclosure obligations.
 - With this regards, the following are examples of indicators of financial risk or difficulties to the company: (1) ongoing losses (2) poor cash flow (3) incomplete financial records (4) lack of a proper or incomplete accounting system (5) lack of cash flow forecasts and other budgets (6) lack of a business plan (7) increasing debt (liabilities greater than assets), and (8) problems selling stock or collecting debts and etc.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the company has sound financial mitigation plans that consider stakeholder rights including creditor rights. The Board of Director shall supervise and monitor management's handling of financial risk or difficulties and seek regular reports.
- (3) The Board of Director shall supervise and ensure that any actions to improve the company's financial position are reasonable and shall be made for a proper purpose.

Principle 7.4 Sustainability Report

The Board of Directors has a policy to prepare the sustainability reporting as appropriate.

- (1) The Board of Directors shall consider and report data on the company's compliance of Code of Conduct, anti-corruption policy, treatment of employees and other stakeholders including fair treatment and respect for human rights, as well as social and environmental responsibilities based on a report framework that is proportionate to the company's size and complexity and meets domestic and international standards.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the company's sustainability reporting reflects material corporate practices that support sustainable value creation.

Principle 7.5 Investor Relations

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the Management has set up the Investor Relations Department to communicate and publicise news and information that are useful to shareholders, investors, analysts and related persons properly, equally and in a timely manner.

- (1) The Board of Directors has a policy to communicate and disclose information to third parties properly, equally and in a timely manner, through proper channels, preserving confidentiality and price-sensitivity of information, as well as to communicate such policy internally to the entire organisation to ensure common understanding and compliance with such policy.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the Management has designated an individual who suitable for the role and have a thorough understanding of the nature of the company's business, and its objectives and values, and can be able to respond for regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders and external parties.
- (3) The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the Management sets clear directions for and supports the Investor Relations function such as establishment of practice in providing information, policy on price-sensitive information management, as well as the defining of precise scope of duties and responsibilities of investor relations so as to ensure efficiency in communication and data disclosure.

Principle 7.6 Dissemination of Information through Information Technology

The Board of Directors encourages the effective use of information technology in disseminating information. In addition to the information disseminating as required by the specified rules, and through the channel, of the Stock of Exchange of Thailand, the Board of Director shall ensure regularly disclosing relevant information in both Thai and in English through other channels, such as the company's website, as well as to provide information which is always up-to-date, all of such information includes the following:

- Corporate vision, missions and values
- Nature of the company's business and operations
- List of members of the Board of Directors and top executives;
- Financial statements and reports about the financial status and the company's financial and non-financial performance for current and previous year
- Downloadable version of SEC Form 56-1 and annual reports²⁰
- Information or documents that the Company discloses to analysts, fund managers or media
- Shareholding structure and Company's group structure
- Major shareholders group

- Invitation letters to the shareholders' ordinary and extraordinary meetings

- Company's regulations, and articles of association
- Company's corporate governance policy and related key policies or charters such as Board of Directors'
 Charter, charters of every sub-committee, Code of Conduct, etc
- Contact information for Whistleblowing, Investor Relations and Company Secretary.

²⁰ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 13/2021 dated 14 December 2021 with effective from 15 December 2021.

Ensure engagement and communication with shareholders

The Company realises and emphasises the rights of shareholders, such as the rights to trade or transfer shares, to enjoy business profit sharing, to receive adequate and complete news and information of the Company, to attend meetings and exercise voting rights at shareholders' meeting independently and equally, to participate in major decision making, which impacts the Company e.g. director appointment or removal, fixing director remuneration, auditor appointment or removal and fixing auditor remuneration, dividend allocation, establishing and amending the articles of association and memorandum of association, capital reduction or increase, and approval of special transactions as required by laws, etc. Shareholders' meetings are one of the important channels for the Company's shareholders to exercise their rights as a shareholder. Furthermore, the Company also adheres to the principle of treating shareholders equitably (The Equitable Treatment for Shareholders).

The Board of Directors has a guideline in organising the Company's shareholders' meetings to encourage and facilitate shareholders to exercise their rights, and to respects the principle of equal treatment of all shareholders as follows:

Principle 8.1 Shareholders' Involvement

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that shareholders have the opportunity to participate effectively in decision-making involving significant corporate matters as follows;

- (1) To supervise and ensure that significant corporate decisions are considered and/or approved by the shareholders pursuant to applicable legal requirements. Matters that require shareholder approval should be included in the agenda for the shareholders' meeting and shareholders should be provided sufficient notice thereof.
- (2) To encourage the participation of all shareholders to have an opportunity to propose agenda items for shareholders' meetings and/or nominate persons to serve as directors of the company prior to an annual general meeting of shareholders to encourage equitable treatment for shareholders pursuant to the rules imposed by the Company as announced on the Company's website and on the website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
- (3) To supervise and ensure that invitation letters for shareholders' meetings contain accurate, complete, and sufficient information for shareholders to exercise their rights, namely:
 - (3.1) Invitation letters for the shareholders' meeting and related papers shall be sent to shareholders and posted on the company's website prior to the meeting date according to the advance period as required by laws.
 - (3.2) Giving shareholders opportunities to submit questions prior to each meeting date, by seting the criteria and a process for shareholders to submit questions and posted on the company's website.
 - (3.3) Invitation letters for the shareholders' meeting and related papers will be fully prepared and bilingual published both Thai and English versions which covers the following matters.

- Date, time, and venue of the shareholders' meeting;
- Meeting agenda and matters to be proposed for acknowledgement or approval and each matter in there shall be clearly separated one by one;
- Objectives and reasons, and Board of directors' opinions, concerning each agenda item
- Proxy form specified by the Ministry of Commerce, in which information on at least 1 independent director shall be presented in order to allow shareholders to choose proxy to attend the meeting and vote on behalf of shareholders;
- Other supporting information, including on voting procedures such as voting count and verification of voting results criteria, voting rights of each class of shares, details concerning independent directors proposed by the company to act as proxies for shareholders, and map of meeting venue, and etc.

Principle 8.2 Shareholders' Meeting

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure that the shareholders' meetings are held as scheduled and conducted properly, with transparency and efficiency, and ensure inclusive and equitable treatment of all shareholders and their ability to exercise their rights:

- (1) To set the date, time, and venue of the meeting by considering the convenience for attendance of shareholders, such as allocating appropriate and sufficient time for discussion, and convenient venue for travel to the the meeting, etc;
- (2) To prevent any action that limits meeting attendance opportunity, or creates unreasonable burden to shareholders, in the event that shareholders are unable to attend the meeting, the Company shall give an opportunity for the independent director or any person to act as proxy for shareholders and attend the meeting for shareholders' behalf by using proxy form sent by the Company together with the invitation letter;
- (3) To encourage the use of information technology to facilitate the shareholders' meetings, including for registration, vote counting and result display to ensure the meeting process can be conducted rapidly, correctly and accurately.
- (4) The Chairman of the Board of Directors is the Chairman of the shareholders' meeting with responsibility for compliance with applicable legal requirements and the company's articles of association, in this regard, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall explain the rules to be applied in the meeting, as well as vote casting procedure, allocating sufficient time for consideration and discussion of agenda items, and providing opportunity to all shareholders who wish to share their opinions or ask questions related to the company;
- (5) To ensure the right of shareholders to participate in the company's decision-making process in relation to significant corporate matters by participating and voting at shareholder's meetings on the basis of sufficient notice and information, directors who are shareholder should not be allowed to add items to the meeting agenda that have not been duly notified in advance;

- (6) The Board of Directors has a policy for all directors and top executives to attend the meeting to answer questions from shareholders on company-related matters;
- (7) Before the meeting begins, the shareholders shall be informed of the number and the proportion of shareholders and shares represented at the meeting in person and through proxies, the meeting method, and the voting and vote counting methods;
- (8) In case of where one agenda contains a number of items for consideration, the Chairman of the meeting will separate each item to be voted. For example, shareholders shall exercise their rights on the appointment of each director to be voted on and recorded as separate resolution, etc.
- (9) To encourage the use of ballots for voting on resolutions proposed at the shareholders' meeting and designate an independent party to count or to audit the voting results for each resolution in the meeting, and to disclose such voting results at the meeting by identifying the number of "agree", "disagree" and "abstain" votes. The voting results for each proposed resolution should be included in the minutes of the meeting.

Principle 8.3 Resolution and Minutes of Shareholders' Meeting

The Board of Directors shall supervise and ensure accurate, timely and complete disclosure of shareholder resolutions and preparation of the minutes of the shareholders' meetings.

- (1) The Board of Directors shall ensure that the company discloses the results of voting on proposed resolutions at the shareholders' meeting through the designated Stock Exchange of Thailand channels and through the company's website by the next business day.
- (2) The Board of Directors shall require the company to submit the copy of th minutes of the shareholders' meeting to the Stock Exchange of Thailand in accordance with the relevant rules and agencies within the specified time of law and/or related entities.
- (3) The Board of Direcortors shall supervise and ensure that the company promptly prepares the minutes of the shareholders' meeting, including the following information:
 - the attendance list of directors and top executives, and the proportion of directors in attendance and in absence;
 - voting and vote counting methods, meeting resolutions, and voting results ("agree", "disagree",
 and "abstain") for each proposed resolution; and
 - questions asked and answers provided during the meeting, including the identity of the persons asking and answering the questions.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

The company has formulated a policy to prevent conflicts of interest, so that the directors, executives and employees shall have guidelines for performing their duties in good faith and not seeking personal interests that conflict with the Company's interests and comply with the Securities and Exchange Act as follows:

"Conflict of interest" refers to any activity or circumstance in which a person has a personal interest or benefitting those related; this may hinder B.Grimm Power from gaining optimum benefits, or resulted from the B.Grimm Power suffering damages.²¹

Directors, executives²², and employees are prohibited on conducting or engaging in businesses that are in the same condition or as competitive with the company's business and its subsidiaries, or become partners or directors in other juristic persons who are in the same condition and compete with the company's business and its subsidiaries, regardless of their own benefit or the interests of other parties unless the meeting of shareholders is notified of the matter before a resolution is passed to appoint such directors.

In case that any director engages in any business, be a partner or director in any other legal entity in the same industry or in competition with the Company's business, he/she is required to declare such matter to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement in due course.²³

- Directors, executives, and employees must avoid any actions that may cause conflicts of interest or connected transaction with oneself and related parties. In the event that a transaction is necessary, the directors, executives, and employees must inform the company of the relationship or their connection and those involved in the said transaction and must not participate in the approval process for that transaction.
- 3. The following acts giving the Directors, executives or related persons more financial benefits than a normal course of business or incurring damage to the Company or its subsidiaries are deemed to have significant conflicts of interest with the Company and its subsidiaries:
 - The transactions between the Company or its subsidiaries and the directors, management or related persons made outside of the rules on connected transactions;
 - (2) The use of information of the Company or its subsidiaries unless it has been already disclosed publicly;
 - (3) The use of assets or business opportunities of the Company or its subsidiaries contravening to the rules or regulations prescribed by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.²⁴
- 3. Connected transactions and transactions with conflicts of interest must comply with the relevant guidelines of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("Office of SEC.") the Capital Market Supervisory Board and the Stock Exchange of Thailand strictly and must be proposed to Audit Committee and the Board of Directors to carefully consider the appropriateness, as well as to disclose

²¹ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 15/2023 dated 13 December 2023 with effective from 14 December 2023.

²² Executive refers to the manager or the first four top-ranking executives after the manager level as well as all other 4th ranking equivalent, and accounting or finance executives of department head level and up.

²³ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 16/2022 dated 14 December 2022 with effective from 1 January 2023.

²⁴ Approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 16/2022 dated 14 December 2022 with effective from 1 January 2023.

information in accordance with the guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and/or other relevant agencies.

4. Reporting the interests

Directors and executives have a duty to prepare and report "Interests reporting form" of the directors, executives, including their related parties in order to be used as basic information on the supervision of interest on an annual basis and must always prepare the said report form when there is an amendment occurred.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reporting the interests, at least before considering the Board of Directors' agenda and recorded in the minutes of the Board of Directors' meeting so that the directors with significant interests in such manner that they may not be able to give independent opinions and refrain from participating in the meeting for consideration of that agenda.

With this regard, the Board of Directors has assigned Company Secretary to collect information and prepare such reports to propose to Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for the purpose of investigating and supervising conflicts of interest.